
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AGENDA 
AUGUST 24, 2022, REGULAR MEETING 

CITY HALL AUDITORIUM 
324 PINE STREET  

6:30 P.M. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

2. QUASI-JUDICIAL ANNOUNCEMENT AND SWEARING IN OF SPEAKERS 

3. APPLICATION #22-72 – VARIANCE TO REDUCE THE REQUIRED FRONT AND REAR YARD 
SETBACKS AND TO ALLOW NONCONFORMING LOTS OF RECORD TO BE BUILT UPON, FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING TWO SINGLE FAMILY HOMES. 
LOCATION:  SOUTHSIDE OF DIVISION STREET, APPROXIMATELY 176 FEET WEST OF THE 
ATHENS STREET INTERSECTION (LOTS 9 & 10) 

4. APPLICATION #22-73 – VARIANCE TO REDUCE THE REQUIRED REAR YARD SETBACK FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING A SCREENED IN PORCH. 
LOCATION: 1615 STONEHAVEN WAY 

5. APPLICATION #22-78 – VARIANCE TO ALLOW A FENCE TO EXCEED THE MAXIMUM 
ALLOWABLE HEIGHT. 
LOCATION: 1611 COPPERTREE DRIVE 

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
a. June 29, 2022 

7. STAFF COMMENTS 

8. BOARD COMMENTS 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board of Adjustment with respect to any matter considered at this meeting 
or hearing, they will need a record of the proceedings and that, for such purpose, they may need to ensure that a verbatim record 
of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. You are 
invited to attend the meeting to express your views or to present facts in regard to the case. Written comments may be addressed 
to the Planning & Zoning Department, P.O. Box 5004, Tarpon Springs, Florida, 34688-5004, and will become part of the records. 
All documents submitted with the applications are on file and available for inspection in the Planning & Zoning Department, City 
Hall. Further information may be obtained from the Planning & Zoning Department, (727) 942-5611 or by email to 
pmcneese@ctsfl.us. Said hearing may be continued from time-to-time pending adjournment. Any person with a disability requiring 
reasonable accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should call (727) 942-5611 or email a written request to 
akeen@ctsfl.us. 

 

City of Tarpon Springs, Florida 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
324 E. PINE STREET 

P.O. BOX 5004 
TARPON SPRINGS, FL 34688-5004 

(727) 942-5611 
Fax (727) 943-4651 

www.ctsfl.us 
  

mailto:akeen@ctsfl.us
http://www.ctsfl.us/


CITY OF TARPON SPRINGS 
PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

 
Page 1 of 1 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To: Board of Adjustment Members  
 
Staff: Allie Keen, AICP, Senior Planner 
 
Date:  August 19, 2022 
 
Subject:  Addendum to Application #22-72 – Denami Holdings, LLC 

 
 

The applicant, Denami Holdings, LLC, has provided the attached additional information for 
consideration of variance application #22-72. The additional information includes: 
 

1. Conceptual Architectural Elevation Options 
2. Amended setback variance application to allow a rear yard setback of 5 feet, as opposed to 

the original request for a minimum 10 foot rear yard setback.  
 
This application is scheduled for the August 24, 2022, Board of Adjustment meeting. Staff will amend 
the presentation in advance of the meeting to include the additional information provided.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Conceptual Architectural Renderings 
2. Amended Setback Variance Application 







Planning and Zoning Department 
324 Pine Street 
Tarpon Springs, Florida 34689 
 

 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT APPLICATION 
 

Page 1 of 4 
Variance Rev. 3/11/2021 

 
 

CITY OF 
TARPON SPRINGS 

FLORIDA 
 

TEL: (727) 942-5611 
EMAIL: planning@ctsfl.us 

 
www.ctsfl.us 

 
This application MUST be 

completed IN FULL and submitted 
with all applicable documents listed 
below in order to be scheduled for a 

Board or Committee. 
 

All fees MUST be paid in full prior to 
Public Hearing. 

 
 Completed original application form 

and digital copy 
 Application fee: 

 Variance Request - $250.00 
each, or 

 Appeal of Administrative 
Decision - $250.00 each, and 

 Newspaper Ad - $150.00 each 

 Postcards (500 foot radius) - 
$0.77 each, and 

 Placard - $ 16.00 
(Call for fee calculation assistance if needed) 

 Property survey, signed and sealed by 
a professional land surveyor 

 Site Plan with documentation of 
variance request (to scale with 
measurements called out) 

 Photographs of site if relevant to 
request. 

 Digital copies of all application 
materials (including completed 
application and plans) 

 Proof of ownership (a copy of the 
deed which conveyed title to the 
present owner of the property 

 Other supporting information, as 
necessary 

 
1. Property Owner(s) 
Name 
 

Email 

Address 
 

City 
 

State Zip 

Phone Fax Cell 
 

2. Applicant (if different than owner) 
Name 
 

Email 

Address 
 

City 
 

State Zip 

Phone Fax Cell 
 

3. Agent (if applicable) 
Name 
 

Email 

Address 
 

City 
 

State Zip 

Phone Fax Cell 
 

4. General Information 
Property Location or Address 
 

Legal Description (attach additional sheets as necessary) 
 

Tax Parcel Number(s) Land Use 
Category 

Zoning District 

 
 

 

Esther Herzog asherzog1@gmail.com

4789 Daybreak Circle

Colorado Springs CO 80917

727-294-6406

Denami Holdings, LLC

556 Anclote Road

Tarpon Springs FL 34689

727-942-4149 727-938-6297

maria@olympuspaintng.com

Division Street Lots 9 & 10

TARPON HEIGHTS, REV PLAT OF SECTION D OF I.B. READS LOTS 9 & 10

12-27-15-89874-000-0090

Residential

R-60



Planning and Zoning Department 
324 Pine Street 
Tarpon Springs, Florida 34689 
 

 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT APPLICATION 
 

Page 2 of 4 
Variance Rev. 3/11/2021 

Variance Requested: 

I am requesting a variance from Land Development Code (LDC) Section(s) ____________.  

Please describe the project and how it varies from the Code (attach additional sheets as necessary). (e.g., A 
side setback variance reduction from the required 10 feet to 7 feet for the purpose of constructing a building 
addition) 

_______________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________ 
To view the LDC standards and section references, follow the link below: 
https://library.municode.com/fl/tarpon_springs/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APCOZOLADECO  

Board of Adjustment Review Standards: 

Per LDC Section 215.02(B) (link provided below), the Board of Adjustment may only grant a variance when the 
following standards are determined to be met and proven by competent substantial evidence. Please review the 
standards listed below and provide a justification on how your request meets each of the standards (attach 
additional sheets as necessary).  
 
https://library.municode.com/fl/tarpon_springs/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APCOZOLADECO_ART
XIIADEN_S215.02VA  
 
(1) The need for the requested variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape, topographical 

conditions, or other physical or environmental conditions that are unique to the specific property involved, 
and which do not apply generally to property located in the same zoning district. (Do you have a physical 
hardship that prevents you from meeting the requirements of the code?) (Provide photographs if possible) 

(a) Preservation of a protected or native tree(s), but not an invasive tree(s), as defined in Sections 133 
and 134 of the LDC, may be considered as a relevant environmental condition. (If there are 
protected or native trees on your property, they could be considered a physical hardship if their 
preservation results in the need for the variance.) 

(b) Location of the property in the Historic District may be considered as a unique physical condition. 
However, any variance applied for within the Historic District shall be found to be compatible with 
the character of the properties within that District before any variance may be granted. (If the need 
for the variance is in response to the property being located in the Historic District, it could be 
considered a physical hardship.) 

_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________ 

(2) The conditions or special circumstances peculiar to the property have not been self-created or have resulted 
from an action by the applicant or with prior knowledge or approval of the applicant. (Did you create the 
situation that requires a variance (e.g. you put in a pool at the minimum setback, but now want a pool 
screen enclosure that is too close to the property line as a result of the chosen pool location)?)  
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________ 

A front and rear setback reduction from 20 feet to 10 feet for the purpose of constructing a 
single-family home. 

The dimensions of the property without the adjustment of the setbacks does not allow for 
the construction of a single family home similar to those in the surrounding neighborhood. 

The conditions of the property have not been self-created. 

25.03

If allowed, we would like to request a rear setback of 5 feet to allow for a 
rear-loading garage. If this setback is not acceptable, then we would keep with the request of 10 feet.  

https://library.municode.com/fl/tarpon_springs/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APCOZOLADECO
https://library.municode.com/fl/tarpon_springs/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APCOZOLADECO_ARTXIIADEN_S215.02VA
https://library.municode.com/fl/tarpon_springs/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APCOZOLADECO_ARTXIIADEN_S215.02VA


Planning and Zoning Department 
324 Pine Street 
Tarpon Springs, Florida 34689 
 

 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT APPLICATION 
 

Page 3 of 4 
Variance Rev. 3/11/2021 

(3) Literal enforcement of the requirements of the Code would have the effect of denying the applicant 
reasonable use of the property, or legally conforming buildings or other structures, and the requested 
variance is the minimum variance that will make possible the reasonable use of the property. (Would the 
approval of the variance allow for the reasonable use of the property and its structures? If the variance is 
denied, would you still have reasonable use of the property?) 

_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________ 

(4) Granting the variance will not confer any special privilege that is not allowed for other lands, buildings, or 
structures in the same zoning district; no variance will be granted that extends to the applicant a use of 
property that is not commonly enjoyed by other persons in similar circumstances. (Would approval of the 
variance result in a special privilege that other properties within the same zoning district do not have (e.g. 
allowing a building to exceed the maximum height just to add another story to the building)?) 

_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________ 

(5) Granting the variance will not substantially diminish property values in the surrounding area, substantially 
interfere with, or injure the rights of others whose property would be affected by approval of the variance, 
alter the essential character of the neighborhood, or create a nuisance. (Would approval of this request 
have an adverse effect on surrounding properties?) 

_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________ 

 
Helpful Links: 
 
The following links may be used to assist you in completing this application, as well as, providing supporting 
documentation. 
 
• Tarpon Springs Zoning Application - 

https://gis.ctsfl.us/portal/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=9596539ae16744b4af44d320f190c791  

• Tarpon Springs Land Development Code - 
https://library.municode.com/fl/tarpon_springs/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APCOZOLADECO  

• Pinellas County Property Appraiser – http://www.pcpao.org/ 

• Pinellas County Clerk, Official Records – https://ccmspa.pinellascounty.org/PublicAccess/default.aspx 

 

The approval of the variance would allow for the construction of a single-family home

Granting this variance would not confer any special privileges that is not allowed for 
others in the same zoning district. 

similar to those in the surrounding neighborhood. If the variance is denied the property would still   

have reasonable use. 

Granting this variance would have no adverse effect on surrounding properties. 

https://gis.ctsfl.us/portal/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=9596539ae16744b4af44d320f190c791
https://library.municode.com/fl/tarpon_springs/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APCOZOLADECO
http://www.pcpao.org/
https://ccmspa.pinellascounty.org/PublicAccess/default.aspx


02/10/2022



CITY OF TARPON SPRINGS 
PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

 
#22-72 
Denami Holdings, LLC 
Page 1 of 5 

CITY OF TARPON SPRINGS 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS 

[AUGUST 24, 2022] 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 
Application No. / Project Title: #22-72 (Denami Holdings, LLC) 

Staff:    Allie Keen, AICP, Senior Planner 

Applicant / Owner:  Denami Holdings, LLC / Esther Herzog 

Property Size:   +/- 9,000 square feet 

Current Zoning:   R-60 (One and Two Family Residential) 

Current Land Use:  RM (Residential Medium) 

Location / Parcel ID: Located on the southside of Division Street, approximately 176 feet west of 
the Athens Street intersection (Lots 9 & 10) / 12-27-15-89874-000-0090 

 

BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 
The applicant is requesting variance approval to allow for the construction of 2 single-family homes on 
nonconforming lots of record and to reduce the front and rear yard setbacks to 10 feet, 10 feet less than 
required. 
 
PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Based on the evidence available at the time this report was prepared, staff would recommend the following: 

1. Approval of the nonconforming lot of record variance request. 
2. Approval of the reduced (10 foot) rear yard setback variance. 
3. Denial of the reduced (10 foot) front yard setback variance. Staff would support a reduced front yard 

setback of at least 16 feet, which is consistent with the average front setback along Division Street. It 
is staff’s opinion that the home layouts could be revised to observe a larger front setback that is more 
complimentary to the historic development pattern of the neighborhood.  

 
If the Board approves the front yard setback variance, staff recommends the following condition: The reduced 
front yard setback shall not apply to a front-loaded garage. A front-loaded garage shall meet the minimum 25-
foot front setback typically required for the R-60 zoning district.  
 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE CONSIDERATIONS: 
District Intent: The R-60 neighborhood conservation district is created to promote the stability and 
redevelopment of established neighborhoods consisting primarily of platted subdivisions. The existing street 
and circulation system should be preserved to promote interaction among residents and with community 
institutions. 
 
Development Standards:  

1. Section 24.02(B) of the Land Development Code states that if at any time the owner of a 
nonconforming lot owns adjoining unimproved land, then the lots or land shall be combined to meet 
the minimum requirements in the current Land Development Code. 

2. Per Section 25.03(E)(4) of the Land Development Code, the minimum front and rear yard setback is 20 
feet in the R-60 zoning district. 

 



CITY OF TARPON SPRINGS 
PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

 
#22-72 
Denami Holdings, LLC 
Page 2 of 5 

CURRENT PROPERTY INFORMATION:  

Use of Property: Vacant 

Site Features: Trees and vegetation 

Vehicle Access: This property gains access from Division Street. 

 
SURROUNDING ZONING & LAND USE: 

 Zoning: Land Use: 

North: R-60 (One and Two Family Residential) RM (Residential Medium) 
CL (Commercial Limited) 

South: R-60 (One and Two Family Residential) RM (Residential Medium) 

East: R-60 (One and Two Family Residential) RM (Residential Medium) 

West: R-60 (One and Two Family Residential) RM (Residential Medium) 

 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
When considering this application, the following general site conditions, planning concepts, and other facts 
should be noted: 

1. The applicant is requesting the Board of Adjustment to recognize the historic lot layout of the subject 
property as 2 separate buildable lots. The applicant intends to construct a single-family home on each 
lot. 

2. The subject site was originally platted as two lots (Lots 9 & 10) in 1914 as a part of the I.B. Reads 
Tarpon Heights plat, predating the City’s first land development code. Upon adoption of the first Land 
Development Code in 1944, Lots 9 and 10 were in the R-1 zoning district, which required a minimum 
lot area of 5,000 square feet. Lots 9 and 10 became non-conforming at that time because they did not 
meet the minimum lot area. Lot 9 is approximately 4,485 square feet and Lot 10 is approximately 
4,250 square feet. 

3. Per LDC Section 24.02(B), if at any time the owner of a nonconforming lot owns adjoining unimproved 
land, the lots shall be combined to meet the minimum requirements. According to deed records 
available, it appears that Lots 9 and 10 have been under common ownership since they were originally 
platted, which results in the need for a variance to consider these as two separate buildable lots. 

4. The subject property is currently undeveloped. There was a home on the property previously, 
however, it was demolished in 2008. 

5. According to the provided conceptual plan, the proposed homes will have a front and rear yard 
setback of 10 feet. Per Section 25.03(E)(3) of the Land Development Code, in the R-60 zoning district, 
the minimum front and rear yard setback if 20 feet. According to the site plan, the proposed layout of 
the homes will meet the minimum side yard setbacks for the R-60 zoning district. 

6. Most of the homes along Division Street were constructed in the 1910s-1920s. Based on aerial 
photography measurements, these homes have moderate front setbacks, approximately ranging 
between 12 and 53 feet with an average of 16 feet. Several of the existing homes in the immediate 
neighborhood have minimal rear setbacks. The required front and rear setbacks would result in a 
buildable area allowing for a home approximately 45 feet deep. Existing homes along Division Street 
range between 36 and 72 feet, with an average depth of approximately 50 feet. The deepest home is 
the adjacent property to the west.   

7. Per LDC Section 25.03(E)(3), garages are required to have a minimum front setback of 25 feet for the 
purpose of allowing adequate space for a vehicle parked in the driveway to not overhang sidewalks. 
According to the provided conceptual site plan, both homes will have a front facing garage at the 



CITY OF TARPON SPRINGS 
PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

 
#22-72 
Denami Holdings, LLC 
Page 3 of 5 

proposed 10-foot front setback. Additionally, there are no homes along Division Street with front 
facing garages.  

8. LDC Section 38.00 provides for various yard encroachments which allows certain structures to 
encroach into a required setback. Specifically, unenclosed front porches are permitted to encroach up 
to 10 feet into a required front yard.  

 
REVIEW STANDARDS / PROVISIONAL FINDINGS OF FACT – NONCONFORMING LOT OF RECORD 
VARIANCE: 
Section 215.02.5 of the LDC provides that notwithstanding the requirements of Section 24.02, the Board of 
Adjustment may grant a variance to allow a nonconforming lot of record to be built upon if the following 
standards are met and provided by competent substantial evidence: 
 
1. The lot consists of at least one entire lot of record on the effective date of this Code. 

 
Provisions Findings:  The subject property was originally platted in 1914 as two separate lots of record prior 
to the effective date of the Land Development Code. Based upon evidence available when this report was 
drafted, staff is of the opinion that this standard has been met. 
 

2. The lot was not created in violation of a previous zoning ordinance. 
 
Provisional Findings:  The lots were in existence prior to the City’s first zoning ordinance that went into 
effect in 1944, therefore the properties were not created in violation of a previous ordinance.  Based upon 
the evidence available when this report was drafted, staff is of the opinion that this standard has been met. 

 
3. The lot was not combined with a neighboring lot under common ownership in order to allow the existing 

improvements on the neighboring developed lot to meet applicable setbacks. 
 
Provisional Findings:  According to deed records it appears these two lots have been under common 
ownership prior to the City’s first land development code and this provision being in effect and the 
property is currently undeveloped. Based upon the evidence available when this report was drafted, staff is 
of the opinion that this standard has been met.  

 
REVIEW STANDARDS / PROVISIONAL FINDINGS OF FACT – SETBACK VARIANCE: 
Section 215.02(B) of the Land Development Code provides that the Board of Adjustment shall grant no variance 
unless certain standards are met and proven by competent substantial evidence. These standards, along with 
planning staff’s provisional findings of fact are provided below: 
 
1. The need for the requested variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape, topographical 

conditions, or other physical or environmental conditions that are unique to the specific property 
involved, and which do not apply generally to property located in the same zoning district. 

 
Provisional Findings:  The need for the variance is due to the lots, which pre-date the City’s zoning 
regulations, being smaller in lot area than what would be currently required under the current zoning 
requirements.  Based upon evidence available when this report was prepared, staff is of the opinion that 
this standard has been met. 
 

2. The conditions or special circumstances peculiar to the property have not been self-created or have 
resulted from an action by the applicant or with prior knowledge or approval of the applicant.  

 



CITY OF TARPON SPRINGS 
PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

 
#22-72 
Denami Holdings, LLC 
Page 4 of 5 

Provisional Findings:  The lots were originally platted in 1914, prior to the current zoning regulations being 
in place.   Based upon evidence available when this report was prepared, staff is of the opinion that this 
standard has been met. 
 

3. Literal enforcement of the requirements of the City of Tarpon Springs’ Comprehensive Land 
Development Code would have the effect of denying the applicant of reasonable use of the property, or 
legally conforming buildings or other structures, and the requested variance is the minimum variance 
that will make possible the reasonable use of the property. 

 
Provisional Findings:  Literal enforcement of the minimum setback requirements would result in homes 
that could only be approximately 45 feet deep, less than the average home depth for other property along 
Division Street. The reduced rear yard setback is consistent with other developed properties in the 
neighborhood and would allow for a home to be constructed that is comparable in size to existing homes 
in the area and is the minimum variance necessary to make reasonable use of the property. However, 
based on the historic development pattern of the neighborhood and yard encroachment allowances of the 
Land Development Code, staff is of the opinion the home layouts could be redesigned to have a larger 
front setback that is more compatible with the surrounding area.    Based upon evidence available when 
this report was prepared, staff is of the opinion that this standard has not been met in regard to the front 
setback variance. Based on the evidence available when this report was prepared, staff is of the opinion 
that this standard has been met for the rear setback variance. 
 

4. Granting the variance will not confer any special privilege that is not allowed for other lands, buildings 
or structures in the same zoning district; no variance will be granted that extends to the applicant a use 
of property that is not commonly enjoyed by other persons in similar circumstances. 

 
Provisional Findings:  Although the historic lots are smaller than typically required, they are comparable in 
size and configuration with other lots in the immediate neighborhood and have been built with larger front 
setbacks. Granting of the front setback variance could provide special privilege by allowing a reduced front 
yard smaller than all properties along the same street that were generally built pre-1930 and the adoption 
of zoning requirements. The requested reduced rear yard setback is consistent with other properties 
within the district with similar circumstances as the subject site.  Based upon evidence available when this 
report was prepared, staff is of the opinion that this standard has not been met in regard to the front 
setback variance. Based on the evidence available when this report was prepared, staff is of the opinion 
that this standard has been met for the rear setback variance. 
 

5. Granting the variance will not substantially diminish property values in the surrounding area, 
substantially interfere with, or injure the rights of others whose property would be affected by approval 
of the variance, alter the essential character of the neighborhood, or create a nuisance. 

 
Provisional Findings:  The subject property is located within an older section of Tarpon Springs. Many of 
the homes along Division Street were constructed in the 1910s and 1920s. These homes are built on lots 
comparable in size and configuration to the subject site, however, the average front setback is 16 feet with 
smaller rear yards. Granting of the variance to allow for the reduced front setback to be 10 feet could alter 
the essential character of the immediate neighborhood. However, the requested reduced rear yard 
setback would be comparable to surrounding properties and would likely not adversely affect the 
surrounding area.  Based upon evidence available when this report was prepared, staff is of the opinion 
that this standard has not been met in regard to the front setback variance. Based on the evidence 
available when this report was prepared, staff is of the opinion that this standard has been met for the rear 
setback variance. 

 
 
 



CITY OF TARPON SPRINGS 
PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

 
#22-72 
Denami Holdings, LLC 
Page 5 of 5 

PUBLIC CORRESPONDENCE: 
Notices were sent to property owners within 500 feet of the subject property; a legal notice was published in 
the Tampa Bay Times; and the property was posted. Staff has received two written responses for this 
application which have been included in the backup materials. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Staff Presentation 
2. Nonconforming Lot Variance Application 
3. Setback Variance Application 
4. Conceptual Site Plan 
5. Public Input Letters 



DENAMI HOLDINGS, LLC
#22-72

Board of Adjustments – August 24, 2022



LOCATION & CONTEXT

SITE

R-60

SAP

N
. P

IN
EL

LA
S 

AV
E.

ADA ST.
WDI-A

IB

GB



• Nonconforming Lot of Record
• LDC Section 24.02(B) – If at any time the owner of a 

nonconforming lot of record owns adjoining land, the 
lots shall be combined to meet the minimum lot 
requirements.

• Reduced Front & Rear Yard Setbacks
• Proposed – 10 feet
• Required – 20 feet

• Applicant/Owner: Denami Holdings, LLC / 
Esther Herzog

• Requesting variance approval to allow 2 
nonconforming lots of record (Lots 9 & 10) 
that are under common ownership to be 
separate buildable lots.

• Requesting reduced front and rear yard
setbacks in order to construct a new single-
family home on each lot.

REQUEST

Subject Property

Historic Platted 
Lot Configuration 
(Lots 9 & 10)



• Nonconforming Lot of Record
• R-60 Zoning

• Min. Lot Area = 5,000 sqft

• Subject Property
• Lot 9 Lot Area = 4,485 sqft
• Lot 10 Lot Area = 4,250 sqft

• Reduced Front & Rear Yard Setbacks
• Proposed – 10 feet
• Required – 20 feet

• Site History
• 1914 – Lots 9 & 10 platted as a part of the I.B. Reads 

Tarpon Heights plat.
• 1944 – First LDC went into effect and property was 

zoned R-1, which required a minimum lot area of 
5,000 sqft. Lots became legally nonconforming at that 
time.

• 2008 – Existing single-family home demolished on Lot 
9.

• Common Ownership – Both Lots 9 and 10 appear to 
have been in common ownership since originally 
platted, predating the common ownership provision.

REQUEST – NONCONFORMING LOT

Subject Property

Historic Platted 
Lot Configuration 
(Lots 9 & 10)



REQUEST – REDUCED FRONT & REAR YARDS

R-60 Zoning:
• Front Yard Required:

• House = Min. 20 feet
• Garage = Min. 25 feet

• Rear Yard Required:
• Min. 20 feet

Proposed Front & Rear Yard:
• 10 feet

10’

10’

Conceptual Site Plan

10’

10’



CONTEXT

Division Street Setbacks
• Front Yard Range = 12 ft – 53 ft
• Front Yard Average = 16 ft
• Rear yards are typically minimal along Division Street
Division Street Home Depths
• Range = 36 ft – 72 ft
• Average = 50 ft
• If R-60 setbacks were required, allows for home approx. 45 feet deep.



• Section 25.03(E)(3): Garage Setback in R-60
• Front loaded garages are required to have a minimum front setback of 25 

feet.
• Prevents a vehicle parked in a driveway from overhanging/blocking a 

sidewalk.
• If front setback variance is approved, staff recommends a front-loaded garage 

still be required to be setback the min. 25 feet.

• Section 38.00: Yard Encroachments
• Code provides for various yard encroachments which allows certain 

structures to encroach into a required setback.
• Unenclosed front porches are permitted to encroach up to 10 feet into a

required front yard.

LDC CONSIDERATIONS



1) The lot consists of at least one entire lot of record on the effective date 
of this Code.

2) The lot was not created in violation of a previous zoning ordinance.

3) The lot was not combined with a neighboring lot under common 
ownership in order to allow the existing improvements on the 
neighboring developed lot to meet applicable setbacks.

REVIEW STANDARDS –
NONCONFORMING LOT OF RECORD



REVIEW STANDARDS – SETBACK VARIANCE
1) The need for the requested variance arises out of the physical surroundings, 

shape, topographical conditions, or other physical or environmental 
conditions that are unique to the specific property involved, and which do 
not apply generally to property located in the same zoning district.

2) The conditions or special circumstances peculiar to the property have not 
been self-created or have resulted from an action by the applicant or with 
prior knowledge or approval of the applicant.

3) Literal enforcement of the requirements of the City of Tarpon Springs’ 
Comprehensive Land Development Code would have the effect of denying 
the applicant or reasonable use of the property, or legally conforming 
buildings or other structures, and the requested variance is the minimum 
variance that will make possible the reasonable use of the property.

4) Granting the variance will not confer any special privilege that is not 
allowed for other lands, buildings or structures in the same zoning district; 
no variance will be granted that extends to the applicant a use of a property 
that is not commonly enjoyed by other persons in similar circumstances.

5) Granting the variance will not substantially diminish property values in the 
surrounding area, substantially interfere with, or injure the rights of others 
whose property would be affected by approval of the variance, alter the 
essential character of the neighborhood, or create a nuisance.



Planning and Zoning Department 
324 Pine Street 
Tarpon Springs, Florida 34689 
 

 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT APPLICATION 
NON-CONFORMING LOT OF RECORD  

Page 1 of 4 
Non-Conforming Lot of Record Variance Rev. 3/11/2021 

 
 

CITY OF 
TARPON SPRINGS 

FLORIDA 
 

TEL: (727) 942-5611 
EMAIL: planning@ctsfl.us 

 
www.ctsfl.us 

 
This application MUST be 

completed IN FULL and submitted 
with all applicable documents listed 
below in order to be scheduled for a 

Board or Committee. 
 

All fees MUST be paid in full prior to 
Public Hearing. 

 
 Completed original application form 

and digital copy 
 Application fee: 

 Variance Request - $250.00 
each, or 

 Appeal of Administrative 
Decision - $250.00 each 

 Newspaper Ad - $150.00 each 

 Postcards (500 foot radius) -    
$0.77 each, and 

 Placard - $ 16.00 
(Call for fee calculation assistance if needed) 

 Property survey, signed and sealed by 
a professional land surveyor 

 Site Plan with documentation of 
variance request (to scale with 
measurements called out) 

 Photographs of site if relevant to 
request. 

 Digital copies of all application 
materials (including completed 
application and plans) 

 Proof of ownership (a copy of the 
deed which conveyed title to the 
present owner of the property 

 Other supporting information, as 
necessary 

 

1. Property Owner(s) 
Name 
 

Email 

Address 
 

City 
 

State Zip 

Phone Fax Cell 
 

2. Applicant (if different than property owner) 
Name 
 

Email 

Address 
 

City 
 

State Zip 

Phone Fax Cell 

3. Agent (if applicable) 
Name 
 

Email 

Address 
 

City 
 

State Zip 

Phone Fax Cell 
 

4. General Information 
Property Location or Address 
 

Legal Description (attach additional sheets as necessary) 
 

Tax Parcel Number(s) Land Use 
Category 

Zoning District 

 
 

 

  

Esther Herzog

Denami Holdings, LLC

556 Anclote Rd

maria@olympuspainting.com

Tarpon Springs FL 34689

727-942-4149 727-938-6297

Division Street Lots 9 & 10

TARPON HEIGHTS, REV PLAT OF SECTION D OF I.B. READS LOTS 9 & 10

12-27-15-89874-000-0090 

Residential

727-294-6406

R-60

asherzog1@gmail.com

4789 Daybreak Circle

Colorado Springs CO 80917



Planning and Zoning Department 
324 Pine Street 
Tarpon Springs, Florida 34689 
 

 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT APPLICATION 
NON-CONFORMING LOT OF RECORD  

Page 2 of 4 
Non-Conforming Lot of Record Variance Rev. 3/11/2021 

Variance Requested: 

Please describe the project (attach additional sheets as necessary): 

_______________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________ 
Lot Dimension Standards: 

This property is located in the _________ zoning district.  

Required Lot Dimensions: Proposed/Current Lot Dimensions: 

Minimum Lot Area:  Lot Area:  

Minimum Lot Width:  Lot Width:  

Minimum Lot Depth:  Lot Depth:  

Follow the link to Section 25.00 of the Land Development Code Zoning for Zoning District lot standards - 
https://library.municode.com/fl/tarpon_springs/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APCOZOLADECO_
ARTIIDIRE_S25.00SCDIRE 

 
Board of Adjustment Review Standards: 

Per Land Development Code Section 215.02.5 (link provided below), the Board of Adjustment may grant a variance 
to allow a nonconforming lot of record to be built upon if the following three standards are met and proven by 
competent substantial evidence. Please review the standards listed below and provide a justification on how 
your request meets each of the standards (attached additional sheets as necessary).  
 
https://library.municode.com/fl/tarpon_springs/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APCOZOLADECO_ART
XIIADEN_S215.02.5VANOLORE 
 
(1) Does the lot consist of at least one entire lot of record on the effective date of this Code? (Explain when 

the lot was created and provide a legal description on single deeds going back to 1990 (e.g. The lot was 
created in 1926 and has remained a single lot of record since that time.))  

_____________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

We would like to construct 2 single family homes, one on each of the lots. These will fit in 

with the surrounding homes in that area. 

R-60

6,000

40ft

sqft

n/a

100

90

9000

The lot was created in 1914 and has remained a single lot of record since that time. 

00004

00004 - PZ (Allie Keen)

Please update application to clarify the proposed lot configurations (i.e. each
lot will be 4,250 square feet in area and 50 feet in lot width). These lots are
nonconforming because of the lot area being less than the required 6,000 square
feet for the R-60 zoning district.

Maria
Text Box
4,250sqft

Maria
Text Box
50ft



Planning and Zoning Department 
324 Pine Street 
Tarpon Springs, Florida 34689 
 

 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT APPLICATION 
NON-CONFORMING LOT OF RECORD  

Page 3 of 4 
Non-Conforming Lot of Record Variance Rev. 3/11/2021 

(2) Was the lot created in violation of a previous zoning ordinance? (Explain if or when the lot was separated or 
subdivided) 

_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________ 
 

(3) Was the lot combined with a neighboring lot under common ownership in order to allow the existing 
improvements on the neighboring developed lot to meet applicable setbacks. (Are the neighboring 
structures on conforming lots? To meet zoning standards (i.e. setbacks, minimum lot standards), did those 
structures rely on the nonconforming lot in order to be built?) 

_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________ 
 

Helpful Links: 
 
The following links may be used to assist you in completing this application, as well as, providing supporting 
documentation.  
 
• Tarpon Springs Zoning Application - 

https://gis.ctsfl.us/portal/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=9596539ae16744b4af44d320f190c791  

• Tarpon Springs Land Development Code - 
https://library.municode.com/fl/tarpon_springs/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APCOZOLADECO  

• Pinellas County Property Appraiser – http://www.pcpao.org/ 

• Pinellas County Clerk, Official Records – https://ccmspa.pinellascounty.org/PublicAccess/default.aspx 

 
 

 
 

N/A

N/A 

00005

00005 - PZ (Allie Keen)

It is recommended to expand your responses to criteria 2 and 3. It appears from
your response to criteria 1, Lots 9 and 10 were created in 1914 as individual
lots, but have been under common ownership since originally created.

Maria
Text Box
Lots were created in 1914 as individual lots. 

Maria
Text Box
Lots have remained under common ownership since originally created.



02/10/2022



Planning and Zoning Department 
324 Pine Street 
Tarpon Springs, Florida 34689 
 

 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT APPLICATION 
 

Page 1 of 4 
Variance Rev. 3/11/2021 

 
 

CITY OF 
TARPON SPRINGS 

FLORIDA 
 

TEL: (727) 942-5611 
EMAIL: planning@ctsfl.us 

 
www.ctsfl.us 

 
This application MUST be 

completed IN FULL and submitted 
with all applicable documents listed 
below in order to be scheduled for a 

Board or Committee. 
 

All fees MUST be paid in full prior to 
Public Hearing. 

 
 Completed original application form 

and digital copy 
 Application fee: 

 Variance Request - $250.00 
each, or 

 Appeal of Administrative 
Decision - $250.00 each, and 

 Newspaper Ad - $150.00 each 

 Postcards (500 foot radius) - 
$0.77 each, and 

 Placard - $ 16.00 
(Call for fee calculation assistance if needed) 

 Property survey, signed and sealed by 
a professional land surveyor 

 Site Plan with documentation of 
variance request (to scale with 
measurements called out) 

 Photographs of site if relevant to 
request. 

 Digital copies of all application 
materials (including completed 
application and plans) 

 Proof of ownership (a copy of the 
deed which conveyed title to the 
present owner of the property 

 Other supporting information, as 
necessary 

 
1. Property Owner(s) 
Name 
 

Email 

Address 
 

City 
 

State Zip 

Phone Fax Cell 
 

2. Applicant (if different than owner) 
Name 
 

Email 

Address 
 

City 
 

State Zip 

Phone Fax Cell 
 

3. Agent (if applicable) 
Name 
 

Email 

Address 
 

City 
 

State Zip 

Phone Fax Cell 
 

4. General Information 
Property Location or Address 
 

Legal Description (attach additional sheets as necessary) 
 

Tax Parcel Number(s) Land Use 
Category 

Zoning District 

 
 

 

Esther Herzog asherzog1@gmail.com

4789 Daybreak Circle

Colorado Springs CO 80917

727-294-6406

Denami Holdings, LLC

556 Anclote Road

Tarpon Springs FL 34689

727-942-4149 727-938-6297

maria@olympuspaintng.com

Division Street Lots 9 & 10

TARPON HEIGHTS, REV PLAT OF SECTION D OF I.B. READS LOTS 9 & 10

12-27-15-89874-000-0090

Residential

R-60



Planning and Zoning Department 
324 Pine Street 
Tarpon Springs, Florida 34689 
 

 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT APPLICATION 
 

Page 2 of 4 
Variance Rev. 3/11/2021 

Variance Requested: 

I am requesting a variance from Land Development Code (LDC) Section(s) ____________.  

Please describe the project and how it varies from the Code (attach additional sheets as necessary). (e.g., A 
side setback variance reduction from the required 10 feet to 7 feet for the purpose of constructing a building 
addition) 

_______________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________ 
To view the LDC standards and section references, follow the link below: 
https://library.municode.com/fl/tarpon_springs/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APCOZOLADECO  

Board of Adjustment Review Standards: 

Per LDC Section 215.02(B) (link provided below), the Board of Adjustment may only grant a variance when the 
following standards are determined to be met and proven by competent substantial evidence. Please review the 
standards listed below and provide a justification on how your request meets each of the standards (attach 
additional sheets as necessary).  
 
https://library.municode.com/fl/tarpon_springs/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APCOZOLADECO_ART
XIIADEN_S215.02VA  
 
(1) The need for the requested variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape, topographical 

conditions, or other physical or environmental conditions that are unique to the specific property involved, 
and which do not apply generally to property located in the same zoning district. (Do you have a physical 
hardship that prevents you from meeting the requirements of the code?) (Provide photographs if possible) 

(a) Preservation of a protected or native tree(s), but not an invasive tree(s), as defined in Sections 133 
and 134 of the LDC, may be considered as a relevant environmental condition. (If there are 
protected or native trees on your property, they could be considered a physical hardship if their 
preservation results in the need for the variance.) 

(b) Location of the property in the Historic District may be considered as a unique physical condition. 
However, any variance applied for within the Historic District shall be found to be compatible with 
the character of the properties within that District before any variance may be granted. (If the need 
for the variance is in response to the property being located in the Historic District, it could be 
considered a physical hardship.) 

_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________ 

(2) The conditions or special circumstances peculiar to the property have not been self-created or have resulted 
from an action by the applicant or with prior knowledge or approval of the applicant. (Did you create the 
situation that requires a variance (e.g. you put in a pool at the minimum setback, but now want a pool 
screen enclosure that is too close to the property line as a result of the chosen pool location)?)  
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________ 

A front and rear setback reduction from 20 feet to 10 feet for the purpose of constructing a 
single-family home. 

The dimensions of the property without the adjustment of the setbacks does not allow for 
the construction of a single family home similar to those in the surrounding neighborhood. 

The conditions of the property have not been self-created. 

25.03

https://library.municode.com/fl/tarpon_springs/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APCOZOLADECO
https://library.municode.com/fl/tarpon_springs/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APCOZOLADECO_ARTXIIADEN_S215.02VA
https://library.municode.com/fl/tarpon_springs/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APCOZOLADECO_ARTXIIADEN_S215.02VA


Planning and Zoning Department 
324 Pine Street 
Tarpon Springs, Florida 34689 
 

 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT APPLICATION 
 

Page 3 of 4 
Variance Rev. 3/11/2021 

(3) Literal enforcement of the requirements of the Code would have the effect of denying the applicant 
reasonable use of the property, or legally conforming buildings or other structures, and the requested 
variance is the minimum variance that will make possible the reasonable use of the property. (Would the 
approval of the variance allow for the reasonable use of the property and its structures? If the variance is 
denied, would you still have reasonable use of the property?) 

_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________ 

(4) Granting the variance will not confer any special privilege that is not allowed for other lands, buildings, or 
structures in the same zoning district; no variance will be granted that extends to the applicant a use of 
property that is not commonly enjoyed by other persons in similar circumstances. (Would approval of the 
variance result in a special privilege that other properties within the same zoning district do not have (e.g. 
allowing a building to exceed the maximum height just to add another story to the building)?) 

_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________ 

(5) Granting the variance will not substantially diminish property values in the surrounding area, substantially 
interfere with, or injure the rights of others whose property would be affected by approval of the variance, 
alter the essential character of the neighborhood, or create a nuisance. (Would approval of this request 
have an adverse effect on surrounding properties?) 

_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________ 

 
Helpful Links: 
 
The following links may be used to assist you in completing this application, as well as, providing supporting 
documentation. 
 
• Tarpon Springs Zoning Application - 

https://gis.ctsfl.us/portal/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=9596539ae16744b4af44d320f190c791  

• Tarpon Springs Land Development Code - 
https://library.municode.com/fl/tarpon_springs/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APCOZOLADECO  

• Pinellas County Property Appraiser – http://www.pcpao.org/ 

• Pinellas County Clerk, Official Records – https://ccmspa.pinellascounty.org/PublicAccess/default.aspx 

 

The approval of the variance would allow for the construction of a single-family home

Granting this variance would not confer any special privileges that is not allowed for 
others in the same zoning district. 

similar to those in the surrounding neighborhood. If the variance is denied the property would still   

have reasonable use. 

Granting this variance would have no adverse effect on surrounding properties. 

https://gis.ctsfl.us/portal/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=9596539ae16744b4af44d320f190c791
https://library.municode.com/fl/tarpon_springs/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APCOZOLADECO
http://www.pcpao.org/
https://ccmspa.pinellascounty.org/PublicAccess/default.aspx


02/10/2022







Board of Adjustment 
Tarpon Springs, Florida 34689 

RE: Variance Application #22-72 

Members of the board, 

We are strongly opposed to the granting of a variance for the construction of two homes on a 
conforming lot, turning it into two non-conforming lots on Division Street for the following reasons: 

Taking the requirements for a variance one by one. 

1. The need for this variance ONLY DOES arise out of the physical characteristics that are 
unique to this property: when split in two, both parts are smaller than nearly all other built-
upon lots in the surrounding area (lots on the blocks between Division and Spruce, and 
between Division and Grand).  Furthermore, one proposed lot is only 92% of the required 
size of 5000 square feet (at 4579 square feet), the other is only 87% of the require size (at 
4329 square feet) 

a. The applicant’s survey says that the trees on or next to this lot are Camphor (1), 
Laurel (2), Mango (2) and Oak (7).  I believe that none are protected but they are 
quite large and quite old and should be preserved.  The proposed construction will 
require the removal of all or nearly all of them and the likely death of all of them. 

b. Not applicable, this is not in Tarpon’s designated Historic District 
2. These conditions long pre-date the current applicant 
3. It is NOT the case that the literal enforcement of the zoning requirement would deny 

reasonable use of the property.  In the applicant’s own answer to this question on their 
Board of Adjustment Application they say “If the variance is denied the property would still 
have reasonable use.”   

4. I cannot address this – I’m not familiar with what privileges may be extended to others in 
the zoning district.  I very much hope that those privileges do not include significant 
variation from longstanding zoning rules. 

5. Granting this variance WILL have several adverse effects on surrounding properties:  
a. The applicants claim that the approval of this variance allows for the construction of 

single-family homes similar to those in the surrounding neighborhood.  That is not 
what they are requesting – the desired homes, as presented, are significantly larger 
than homes in the neighborhood and cover a far larger portion of their lot.  The 
requested homes are shown as covering approximately 2730 square feet (on Lot 9 – 
60% of the lot) and 2530 square feet (on lot 10 – 59% of the lot).  On Division St. the 
average living space is 1580 square feet, with 2025 square feet of lot coverage (30% 
of the lot).  On Spruce St. the average living space is 1410 square feet, with 1700 
square feet of lot coverage (26% of the lot).  On Grand Blvd parallel to Division St 
the average living space is 1260 square feet with 1800 square feet of lot coverage 
(28% of the lot) 

b. Parking is an issue on narrow little Division St. now, even more when there’s a 
festival at the docks or when Athens or Hope Streets are closed, as happened 
several times last year.  The people buying these homes are likely to have at least 
two vehicles each.  There is no provision made for parking more than one of those 



vehicles on the property, nor any possibility of creating such a provision. This will 
interfere with our ability to get to our own driveways to park and certainly creates a 
nuisance, to say nothing of a hazard. 

c. The proposed construction is at the top of the hill on Division St. Drainage is an issue 
now on the slopes of Division Street toward Athens Street and toward Hope Street.  
During even a moderate rain, it flows into the drives of homes lower down.  At 
present, rain can percolate through this entirely undeveloped lot and is sucked up 
by the 10 or 20 large, old trees on the lot or next door. With more than 60% of the 
lot covered by roof, driveway and walkways and those trees gone, where is that 
water to go but to Hope and Athens and the neighbors’ driveways? 

d. The building of two overlarge homes, that too closely approach the lot lines, 
diminishes both the value and comfort of surrounding properties, injuring the rights 
of those of us that live nearby.  

 
Thank you, 
 
Deken Schmidt 
Lynne Hardaker 
 
542 Division St. 
Tarpon Springs, FL 34689 
 
(727) 888-3832 
deken.schmidt@gmail.com 



1

Allie Keen

From: Lois Barth <lois.barth6@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, August 11, 2022 1:36 PM
To: Planning
Cc: Lois Barth
Subject: Attention Planning & Zoning Department; re Southside Division St, Lots 9 & 10

 

Hello,  
For 14 years I owned a house on Read Street in the historic area of Tarpon Springs.  I loved the neighbors and the 
neighborhood.  There is a charm and comfort in that area that attracts those who desire a special place to live and 
owners who will treat their property respectfully.  I have been informed of a request to rezone 2 lots on Division St, #9 
and #10.  The applicant wants to build 2 houses in what appears to be a tight space by reducing the front and rear yard 
setbacks.  This seems to be an affront to any immediate neighbors with already established dwellings. It does not seem 
to fit the charm character of the community which attracts quality residents. The advantage only seems to be to the 
builder and is a form of greed.  Homeowners do not want to sit in their house or yard and look a few feet away into 
someone else's personal space.  I presume the current setback rules were established thoughtfully and for good reason, 
so why make an exception to them now in this one instance?  It could set a precedent for building other houses around 
the town too tightly.  High density living is not desirable in the eyes of many who would be attracted to living in the 
historical area.  Of note, I am a tax paying member of Tarpon Springs.  I now own a condo in the Green Dolphin 
community and I am still quite interested in the quality of life offered to those who choose to live here. 
 
Thank you, 
Lois Barth 

  External Email- Use caution with links and attachments  



CITY OF TARPON SPRINGS 
PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

 
#22-73 
Gasco 
Page 1 of 3 

 
CITY OF TARPON SPRINGS 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS 

[AUGUST 24, 2022] 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 
Application No. / Project Title: #22-73 (Gasco) 

Staff:    Allie Keen, AICP, Senior Planner 

Applicant / Owner:  Tim and Chris Gasco 

Property Size:   +/- 6,000 square feet 

Current Zoning:   R-70 (One and Two Family Residential) 

Current Land Use:  RU (Residential Urban) 

Location / Parcel ID:  1615 Stonehaven Way / 23-27-15-92009-000-1120 

 

BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 
The applicant is requesting to reduce the rear yard setback for the installation of a screened in porch with a 
hard roof over an existing concrete patio. The applicant is proposing a rear setback of 13 feet, 7 feet less than 
required. 
 
PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Based on the information available at the time this report was prepared, staff would recommend approval of 
this request. 
 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE CONSIDERATIONS: 
District Intent: The R-70 one and two family residential district is established to provide for a mixture of one 
and two family dwellings at a medium density where the mixture is determined to be compatible with 
development trends in the area. 
 
Development Standards: Per Land Development Code Section 25.03(F)(6), the minimum required rear yard 
setback is 20 feet in the R-70 zoning district. 
 
CURRENT PROPERTY INFORMATION:  

Use of Property: Single-Family Residential 

Site Features: Single family home, driveway, landscaping, and concrete patio. 

Vehicle Access: This property gains access from Stonehaven Way. 

 
SURROUNDING ZONING & LAND USE: 

 Zoning: Land Use: 

North: R-70 (One and Two Family Residential) RU (Residential Urban) 

South: R-70 (One and Two Family Residential) RU (Residential Urban) 



CITY OF TARPON SPRINGS 
PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

 
#22-73 
Gasco 
Page 2 of 3 

East: R-70 (One and Two Family Residential) RU (Residential Urban) 

West: R-70 (One and Two Family Residential) RU (Residential Urban) 

 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
When considering this application, the following general site conditions, planning concepts, and other facts 
should be noted: 

1. The applicant is proposing to construct a 12 foot by 16 foot (192 square feet) screened in porch with a 
hard roof over an existing concrete patio in the back yard. According to the site plan, the porch will 
have a rear yard setback of 13 feet. 

2. Section 25.03(F)(6) of the Land Development Code (LDC) provides for a minimum 20-foot rear yard 
setback. The existing home is setback approximately 25 feet from the rear property line. Based on the 
lot layout, to construct a covered porch in compliance with the Code, it could be no deeper than 5 
feet. 

3. The Land Development Code provides exceptions to typical zoning district setbacks for certain 
structures, as outlined below: 

a. Section 36.02(C) permits an open pool screen enclosure to have a rear yard setback of 5 feet, 
or outside any easement. There is a 10-foot easement along the rear of the subject property. 
If the proposed screen porch had an open roof rather than the hard roof it could be treated 
like a pool screen enclosure and be constructed as proposed without variance approval. The 
applicant has indicated that the roof is necessary to provide shade for the porch. 

b. Section 36.01(A) permits accessory structures 200 square feet or smaller to be only 5 feet 
from a rear property, or outside any easement. If the proposed structure were detached from 
the home and a separate structure it would be permitted to be as close as 10 feet to the rear 
property line, due to the existing utility easement. 

4. The subject property is located within the Trentwood Manor subdivision, which was originally 
constructed in the 1970s, predating the current zoning regulations. The properties within this 
development generally have similar lot and home sizes. Throughout the development, there are 
several homes with similar covered porches to what the applicant is proposing that are also located 
closer than 20 feet from the rear property lines. 

 
REVIEW STANDARDS / PROVISIONAL FINDINGS OF FACT: 
Section 215.02(B) of the Land Development Code provides that the Board of Adjustment shall grant no variance 
unless certain standards are met and proven by competent substantial evidence. These standards, along with 
planning staff’s provisional findings of fact are provided below: 
 
1. The need for the requested variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape, topographical 

conditions, or other physical or environmental conditions that are unique to the specific property 
involved, and which do not apply generally to property located in the same zoning district. 

 
Provisional Findings:  Although the property conforms with the minimum lot dimensions of the R-60 zoning 
district, the layout of the home, which was constructed in 1974 and comparable in size and shape to others 
in the neighborhood, prevents a practical covered porch from being constructed on the property in 
conformance with the Land Development Code. Based upon evidence available when this report was 
prepared, staff is of the opinion that this standard has been met. 
 

2. The conditions or special circumstances peculiar to the property have not been self-created or have 
resulted from an action by the applicant or with prior knowledge or approval of the applicant.  

 
Provisional Findings:  The home was constructed in 1974, predating the current zoning regulations and the 
applicant owning the property, therefore, the special circumstances have not been self-created.  Based 



CITY OF TARPON SPRINGS 
PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

 
#22-73 
Gasco 
Page 3 of 3 

upon evidence available when this report was prepared, staff is of the opinion that this standard has been 
met. 
 

3. Literal enforcement of the requirements of the City of Tarpon Springs’ Comprehensive Land 
Development Code would have the effect of denying the applicant of reasonable use of the property, or 
legally conforming buildings or other structures, and the requested variance is the minimum variance 
that will make possible the reasonable use of the property. 

 
Provisional Findings:  Literal enforcement of the minimum setback requirements could have the effect of 
denying reasonable use by preventing the construction of covered outdoor space, a use commonly 
enjoyed by residential properties within the immediate neighborhood and elsewhere in the City.  Based 
upon evidence available when this report was prepared, staff is of the opinion that this standard has met. 
 

4. Granting the variance will not confer any special privilege that is not allowed for other lands, buildings 
or structures in the same zoning district; no variance will be granted that extends to the applicant a use 
of property that is not commonly enjoyed by other persons in similar circumstances. 

 
Provisional Findings:  Approval of this request will not confer any special uses or privileges to the applicant 
that are not commonly enjoyed by other property owners in this area. Covered, screened in porches are 
common features for single family properties within the immediate neighborhood and elsewhere in the 
City.  Based upon evidence available when this report was prepared, staff is of the opinion that this 
standard has been met. 
 

5. Granting the variance will not substantially diminish property values in the surrounding area, 
substantially interfere with, or injure the rights of others whose property would be affected by approval 
of the variance, alter the essential character of the neighborhood, or create a nuisance. 

 
Provisional Findings:  Covered, screened-in porches are common features of single family residences in the 
R-60 zoning district. The reduced setback for the proposed porch will not substantially diminish property 
values or alter the character of the neighborhood.  Based upon evidence available when this report was 
prepared, staff is of the opinion that this standard has been met. 

 
PUBLIC CORRESPONDENCE: 
Notices were sent to property owners within 500 feet of the subject property; a legal notice was published in 
the Tampa Bay Times; and the property was posted. Staff has not received any responses to these notices. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Staff Presentation 
2. Application Materials 
3. Survey/Site Plan 



GASCO
#22-73

Board of Adjustments – August 24, 2022



LOCATION & CONTEXT

SITE
R-70

FO
X 

RU
N

 D
R.

RPD

ST
O

N
EH

AV
EN

 W
AY

IDLEBRIAR WAY

CR
O

M
W

EL
L 

DR
.

W. KLOSTERMAN RD.



• #22-73 – Rear Yard Setback
• R-70 Rear Yard Setback:

• Required: 20 feet
• Proposed: 13 feet

• Applicant/Owner: Tim & Chris Gasco

• Proposing to construct a screened-in porch with a hard roof over 
any existing concrete patio in the back yard.

REQUEST



SURVEY

Proposed 
Covered Porch

10’ Utility Easement

13’

25’

R-70 Rear Yard Setback:
• Minimum = 20 feet
• Proposed = 10 feet



• Section 36.02(C): Pool Screen Enclosures
• Open Pool Screen Enclosures permitted minimum 5 foot, or outside any 

easement, rear yard setbacks.
• If hard roof was removed, proposed screened-in porch could be treated 

similarly, and would be permitted without variance approval.

• Section 36.01(A): Accessory Structure Setback
• Structures less than 200 square feet in area are permitted a reduced rear 

yard setback of 5 feet, or outside any easement.
• If proposed porch was detached and a separate structure it would be 

permitted to be as close as 10 feet to the rear property line, due to the 
existing utility easement.

LDC CONSIDERATIONS



CONTEXT

SITE

ST
O

N
EH

AV
EN

 W
AY

CR
O

M
W

EL
L 

DR
.

18’ 13’

11’

11’

12’

18’

18’

17’

20’

16’

11’

13’

12’

15’

13’

12’

Visual Survey from aerial w/approximate rear yard measurements of existing covered porches.



REVIEW STANDARDS - VARIANCE
1) The need for the requested variance arises out of the physical surroundings, 

shape, topographical conditions, or other physical or environmental 
conditions that are unique to the specific property involved, and which do 
not apply generally to property located in the same zoning district.

2) The conditions or special circumstances peculiar to the property have not 
been self-created or have resulted from an action by the applicant or with 
prior knowledge or approval of the applicant.

3) Literal enforcement of the requirements of the City of Tarpon Springs’ 
Comprehensive Land Development Code would have the effect of denying 
the applicant or reasonable use of the property, or legally conforming 
buildings or other structures, and the requested variance is the minimum 
variance that will make possible the reasonable use of the property.

4) Granting the variance will not confer any special privilege that is not 
allowed for other lands, buildings or structures in the same zoning district; 
no variance will be granted that extends to the applicant a use of a property 
that is not commonly enjoyed by other persons in similar circumstances.

5) Granting the variance will not substantially diminish property values in the 
surrounding area, substantially interfere with, or injure the rights of others 
whose property would be affected by approval of the variance, alter the 
essential character of the neighborhood, or create a nuisance.





















.. BOUNDARY SURVEY
'GAL DESCRJPTJON. LOT 112, TRENJWOOD MANOR, ACCORDING ro THE MAP OR PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT .BOOK 68, 

PAGE (SJ 64-65, PU.BLJC RECORDS OF PINELLAS COI.JNTY, ILORJDA 

LOT Ill LOT 84
_,,
� J, r,o, 2·, r 
-:)_ r 25 (l(J' --"-'

0_1_0
;------,-+-=S-=8�7

..:
03:.:6

:.;'5:.:l_"..::E:..1:_:0�0::,:.0�0:...' �f P.2,J ______ __,,_J.
0

�1-( ORNU( I ALLS 
!: 2 70N IA�I �1LNT 

r:-, LN(kO/\UIMLNl ,_ __ 2� 8' r ' I ----,-_ _,__ __ --L��0::--:0'::--------

�1' =:-2 � 
'• 

( 0.�C" I. 
> 
..,;> -

z: < � .IJ o! £
>1.:j 0 

�b, LOTJ12
r1 0 A 

�� 

0 

Ir
,

" ONESTORY RLSIDENCE #1615
UJ UJ 

2/�g � &.. /- �J .,. ----'-
-.-

---.::!! 99 

"'h 6' 

LI « "" 
• <.. 

7' 0 -
,.., ....."'"' 0 0 

5 � � 
,.., r..1 o o/ -- . 

� 
')I 

Z z • 
... -

• <l 
. . • 

<l . COM' 
DR i . . . •

d j_" w � •�:r----.:-=-...:....:.___.L.. -

.. 

. . • 

<l 

JI / 

I r";:;;-;-;; 
« --

,-;om' 
� 

'-.. 
I 

N 87
0

36'5/" \\ 

I � ;;"'----- 1'��
\!� g�

IIUOIHLML ·rvr,c-AL 
!00.00' [P]

J_-c :!§ 

� ,��

LOT 113

I O 
,.. 

� 

,., 0 

-.\ 

L:; 

r
8 

"1 � I Nil ,n• I R '1s � N<llUPRM 

11 4' 

I ' ,. (11,(� 
',i 

'-

� 

� ., ,_
:;l� 
.;'j ". a: oU- c.. 

_,,
2; 
..J 
z 
0 

1 1 u""LM fLM'F 

� 
0 
0 
0 
'O 

� 

I� 
,.., 
N 
0 
<'I 
0 
V) 

ON ll'JL 

LOT83

ON LINl 
',ORN(R fALW. 
UNDLRH.Nn, 

LOT82

� 

w 

s 

E 

CERTIFICATIONS 

Timothy Gasco; Chnstme Gasco, 
Repub/Jc Land & 'l'lrle, Inc; 

'Old Repubhc Na/Jonal 'l'ltle lnsurtJnce Company. 
Quicken Loans, Inc. 

PROPERTY ADDRESS· 
1615 Sronehaven Way 

Tarpon Springs, F7., 34689 
UQQQ llXiC /NFOffllA T1DN. 
.....,.,, ... 
120259 
,AMJ...· � 
0057 G 

,._.,Ml 

V11866 
O,C IP' 
SM 

rtll.M. OAIE." 
oug�ooJ 

X 

rra .. 11: 

09/23/2016 
occm,n 
MC 

BDJUNCS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED 
UPON THE WES"1" UNE OF WT J 12 BEING 

N02"23'09"E PER PLAT 
SCAJ.£· 1"=20' 

NOTrS. 

I) 711• _,,.., I> __, .,, 1/1• 1-r,d '°'�- .. ,.,..-., by 
Iii• OWIL 

2) 1>1• lanfh .....,.,.,, ...-. not ab•trvct-.1 few' o..,,.-.,,_,p, 
..,....,.,,._ rlghf-of-,roy or oth.- 11th ,,,.,,.,. by Utt, J'hn. 

I 
JJ Do not rwconatrvct pn:,p,ty Ml• lh:wn "4Jldhfl ,,.L 

4) No footJ,,g or o,,wft-,p ho.,. b..., lor:ottHI ur.pt n Mo.n.. 
5) !kl� ffll"1"WnMII or ull/llH /1<1,. not ·- locolod 

�r u .-.o.n. 
6) "'• (food dot• pn,"""-'d ,. for rlformotiond purpo..a orJy. 
1) 7Jrio .,..,.p mMu no pucro,t� a. to tri• orcuroc, 

of Ill• tifonnollon ,.,.._ 
a) 71,Ja """T ... not �- lh• ld.nl/llcatlort .,- locolion of 

)KIMkllort« nUanth or .o..-.lpl lartda. If ony. I/tot '"'1)' • 
111t/tfl or odjoc,,I ro the lond• arwie,-d. 

I) r-,n • .,,.,..., ,. not •t,rmn«J. 
ro)s.r-y,. ;,1-,d«/ for ,nortrt9• or 11,ancJ,9 � ,,,,,,,,, 

aJd not to b• uHld lr:r CoulntclO'\ p,rmntl,g,. � or 
i,,y otltw u-. 

e«t::,r:·,:,dc.;.:r ::: .. tit,: :;;r.,-:,.,;o:: �'"J' 
Hl forlh by tit• Boord of Prot.uJonttll L-,d Surwpw "'d 

11.,,.,., h O,�t.- 5J17, F1orltlo Ad-n.,J.trwlA. � 
p.raJ,.,f to s.c11an 472.021. norlda Stotut ... 

Slp,oll.n""1robed-

Docln,nk Sod' r•t5SIVNCH,00"'1A'1'2!116M1�7Crr; 
llfplfl A c.rt• Utwn• Na. LS SU0 

florldo -- s,.,w,.,, .,,, "-
.a,nrr ""' """'° ■it«Nr..,, mr,o�o a.irnKNC .,.._.� N#J 
OLC11kHC .tr"AI. Ne/Off -,r lrALD •rHOA K ..,..� NID � 

AAatD J£AL fT A 1lD'IW � JU"(lat MO� 

13'













CITY OF TARPON SPRINGS 
PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

 
#22-78 
Koos Variance 
Page 1 of 3 

 
CITY OF TARPON SPRINGS 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS 

[AUGUST 24, 2022] 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 
Application No. / Project Title: #22-78 (Koos) 

Staff:    Allie Keen, AICP, Senior Planner 

Applicant / Owner:  Louis J. Koos, Jr. & Pamela Koos 

Property Size:   +/- 6,300 square feet 

Current Zoning:   R-70 (One and Two Family Residential) 

Current Land Use:  RU (Residential Urban) 

Location / Parcel ID:  1611 Coppertree Drive / 23-27-15-92009-000-2360 

 

BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 
The applicant is requesting a variance to allow a fence to be 8 feet in height, 2 feet taller than permitted in a 
residential district. The applicant proposing to construct a wood privacy fence along the north side property 
line. 
 
PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Based on the information available at the time this report was prepared, staff recommends approval of this 
request. 
 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE CONSIDERATIONS: 
District Intent: The R-70 one- and two-family residential district is established to provide for a mixture of one- 
and two-family dwellings at a medium density where the mixture is determined to be compatible with 
development trends in the area.  
 
Development Standards: Per Land Development Code Section 36.03(C), in all residential districts, no fence, 
hedge, or wall shall exceed 6 feet in height. 
 
CURRENT PROPERTY INFORMATION:  

Use of Property: Single Family Residential  

Site Features: Single family home, pool, driveway, and landscaping. 

Vehicle Access: This property gains access from Coppertree Drive 

 
SURROUNDING ZONING & LAND USE: 

 Zoning: Land Use: 

North: R-70 (One and Two Family Residential) RU (Residential Urban) 

South: R-70 (One and Two Family Residential) RU (Residential Urban) 



CITY OF TARPON SPRINGS 
PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

 
#22-78 
Koos Variance 
Page 2 of 3 

East: R-70 (One and Two Family Residential) RU (Residential Urban) 

West: Unincorporated Pinellas County Unincorporated Pinellas County 

 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
When considering this application, the following general site conditions, planning concepts, and other facts 
should be noted: 

1. The applicant is proposing to install a new 8 foot tall, wood fence along the northern side property 
line. According to the applicant, the adjacent property to the north sits at a higher elevation than the 
subject property. The elevation difference ranges between 2.5 feet to 18 inches from west to east. The 
increased fence height will provide additional privacy for the subject property. 

2. Per Land Development Code Section 36.03(C), fences are limited to a maximum 6 feet in all residential 
districts. The Code measures the height of fences from the adjacent grade. Due to the elevation 
difference, an 8-foot-tall fence installed along the north property line would result in a visual height 
from the adjacent property of approximately 6 feet. 

3. There is an existing 4-foot-tall chain link fence along the neighbor’s property to the north. The 
applicant has not indicated whether the proposed fence will replace the existing chain link fence or be 
installed adjacent to it.  

 
REVIEW STANDARDS / PROVISIONAL FINDINGS OF FACT: 
Section 215.02(B) of the Land Development Code provides that the Board of Adjustment shall grant no variance 
unless certain standards are met and proven by competent substantial evidence. These standards, along with 
planning staff’s provisional findings of fact are provided below: 
 
1. The need for the requested variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape, topographical 

conditions, or other physical or environmental conditions that are unique to the specific property 
involved, and which do not apply generally to property located in the same zoning district. 

 
Provisional Findings:  The need for the variance for an increased fence height arises from the higher 
elevation of the adjacent property. The installation of an 8-foot-tall fence along the northern property line 
would result in a visual height of approximately 6 feet from the neighbor’s property, which would be 
comparable to the allowances of the Land Development Code.  Based upon evidence available when this 
report was prepared, staff is of the opinion that this standard has been met. 
 

2. The conditions or special circumstances peculiar to the property have not been self-created or have 
resulted from an action by the applicant or with prior knowledge or approval of the applicant.  

 
Provisional Findings:  The special circumstances of the property have not been self-created no resulted 
from any action by the applicant. The property was developed in 1973, prior to the applicant owning the 
property.   Based upon evidence available when this report was prepared, staff is of the opinion that this 
standard has been met. 
 

3. Literal enforcement of the requirements of the City of Tarpon Springs’ Comprehensive Land 
Development Code would have the effect of denying the applicant of reasonable use of the property, or 
legally conforming buildings or other structures, and the requested variance is the minimum variance 
that will make possible the reasonable use of the property. 

 
Provisional Findings:  The height of the fence is measured from the adjacent grade. Due to the subject 
property being approximately 2 feet lower than the adjacent property to the north, it would result in a 6-
foot fence only being approximately 4 feet for the neighboring property. The proposed additional 2 feet 
will only increase the visual height from the adjacent property to approximately 6 feet, which is consistent 



CITY OF TARPON SPRINGS 
PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

 
#22-78 
Koos Variance 
Page 3 of 3 

with other fences allowed and constructed in residential zones.  Based upon evidence available when this 
report was prepared, staff is of the opinion that this standard has been met. 
 

4. Granting the variance will not confer any special privilege that is not allowed for other lands, buildings 
or structures in the same zoning district; no variance will be granted that extends to the applicant a use 
of property that is not commonly enjoyed by other persons in similar circumstances. 

 
Provisional Findings:  Fences are limited to 6 feet in height for all residential districts. Due to the elevation 
change between the subject property and the property to the north, the taller fence will provide the same 
level of privacy as other fences permitted in residential districts. The increased height will also provide 
additional privacy and screening for the adjacent property to the north due to the elevation change.  Based 
upon evidence available when this report was prepared, staff is of the opinion that this standard has been 
met. 
 

5. Granting the variance will not substantially diminish property values in the surrounding area, 
substantially interfere with, or injure the rights of others whose property would be affected by approval 
of the variance, alter the essential character of the neighborhood, or create a nuisance. 

 
Provisional Findings:  Approval of this request will not substantially diminish property values or alter the 
character of the neighborhood. Due to the elevation of these two properties, it created a unique situation 
where a taller fence will provide similar screening as a permitted 6-foot fence for both the subject site and 
the adjacent property to the north.  Based upon evidence available when this report was prepared, staff is 
of the opinion that this standard has been met. 

 
PUBLIC CORRESPONDENCE: 
Notices were sent to property owners within 500 feet of the subject property; a legal notice was published in 
the Tampa Bay Times; and the property was posted. Staff has not received any responses to these notices. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Staff Presentation 
2. Application Materials 
3. Survey 



KOOS
#22-78

Board of Adjustments – August 24, 2022



LOCATION & CONTEXT

SITE

R-70
CA

RL
TO

N
 R

D.

RPD

CO
PP

ER
TR

EE
 D

R.

TUDOR WAY

ST
O

N
E 

CR
EE

K 
DR

.CITY BOUNDARY



• #22-78 – Fence Height
• Residential Districts (Side/Rear Yard):

• Maximum Height Permitted: 6 feet
• Proposed: 8 feet

• Applicant/Owner: Louis & Pamela Koos

• Proposing to construct an 8 foot tall fence along the north side 
property line.

REQUEST



REQUEST

Proposed 8’ 
Fence



ELEVATION CHANGE

Subject 
Property

Subject 
Property

Adjacent Property Elevation ranges between 1.5 to 2.5 feet higher than subject property.



REVIEW STANDARDS - VARIANCE
1) The need for the requested variance arises out of the physical surroundings, 

shape, topographical conditions, or other physical or environmental 
conditions that are unique to the specific property involved, and which do 
not apply generally to property located in the same zoning district.

2) The conditions or special circumstances peculiar to the property have not 
been self-created or have resulted from an action by the applicant or with 
prior knowledge or approval of the applicant.

3) Literal enforcement of the requirements of the City of Tarpon Springs’ 
Comprehensive Land Development Code would have the effect of denying 
the applicant or reasonable use of the property, or legally conforming 
buildings or other structures, and the requested variance is the minimum 
variance that will make possible the reasonable use of the property.

4) Granting the variance will not confer any special privilege that is not 
allowed for other lands, buildings or structures in the same zoning district; 
no variance will be granted that extends to the applicant a use of a property 
that is not commonly enjoyed by other persons in similar circumstances.

5) Granting the variance will not substantially diminish property values in the 
surrounding area, substantially interfere with, or injure the rights of others 
whose property would be affected by approval of the variance, alter the 
essential character of the neighborhood, or create a nuisance.













akeen
Text Box
Photo showing the neighbor's 4 foot high chain link fence and the poor condition it is in. Our property is on the left in this photo.



akeen
Text Box
Photo is showing the back corner grade with a 6 foot high wood fence along the back line in comparison. Our property is on the right in this photo.



akeen
Text Box
Photo is showing the grade difference of our neighbor's side patio and entrance in comparison to our property. Our property is on the left in this photo.



akeen
Text Box
Photo is showing the height difference of our neighbor's side patio and entrance in comparison to our property. Our property is on the left in this photo.



akeen
Text Box
Photo is further showing the elevation difference between our property and the height of our neighbor's property. Our property is on the left in this photo.



akeen
Text Box
Photo is further showing the elevation difference between our property and the height of our neighbor's property. Our property is on the left in this photo.





 

1 

Board of Adjustment 

June 29, 2022 

MINUTES* 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

CITY OF TARPON SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
REGULAR SESSION – JUNE 29, 2022 

 
THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT OF THE CITY OF TARPON SPRINGS, FLORIDA MET IN A 
REGULAR SESSION IN THE CITY HALL AUDITORIUM AT 324 PINE STREET ON 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 29, 2022, AT 6:30 P.M. WITH THE FOLLOWING PRESENT: 
    

Jacqui Turner    Chairperson 
George Bouris    Vice-Chairperson 

   Chris Hrabovsky   Member 
Joanne Simon    2nd Alternate 
 

ABSENT/EXCUSED Joanne Reich    Member 
 

ALSO PRESENT: Patricia McNeese   Principal Planner 
Allie Keen    Senior Planner 
Erica Augello    Board Attorney 
Kimberly Yothers   Secretary to the Board 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL         

Chairperson, Turner called the meeting to order at 6:31 P.M. 
 

Secretary to the Board Yothers called the roll. 
2. QUASI-JUDICIAL ANNOUNCEMENT AND SWEARING OF SPEAKERS    

Mrs. Augello read the Quasi-Judicial Announcement, swore in all who wished to testify 
and asked the Board if there was any ex-parte communication, there was none.  
 

3. APPLICATION #22-55 – VARIANCE TO REDUCE THE REQUIRED REAR 
AND SIDE YARD SETBACKS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A POOL 
SCREEN ENCLOSURE.          
LOCATION:  705 N. FLORIDA AVENUE       
 
Staff: 
Mrs. Keen gave background information, explained the Findings of Fact listed below and 
indicated that based on the evidence available at the time this report was prepared, staff 
recommended approval of this request. 
 
Findings of Fact: 
1. The need for the variance is due to the location of the pool on the property, which 

was constructed prior to 1980, before the current Land Development Code was in 
effect. 
 
 
 

(Continued) 



 

2 

Board of Adjustment 

June 29, 2022 

APPLICATION #22-55 (CONTINUED)         

2. The special circumstances of the property have not been self-created nor resulted 
from any action by the applicant nor with prior knowledge or approval of the 
applicant. The pool was built pre-1980 prior to the applicant obtaining ownership of 
the property. Further, the pool predates the current Land Development Code, which 
was adopted in 1990, therefore it is legally nonconforming. 

3. Due to the location of the pool and the minimum separation requirements between 
the water’s edge and a pool screen enclosure, it is not possible to meet the minimum 
side setback. The requested variance is the minimum necessary to construct the 
enclosure. 

4. Approval of this request will not confer any special uses or privileges to the applicant 
that are not commonly enjoyed by other property owners in this area. Pool screen 
enclosures are abundant throughout this neighborhood and others within the City. 
Granting the variance will allow for reasonable use and enjoyment of the pool similar 
to other properties in the area. 

5. The proposed pool screen enclosure will surround an existing pool that has been on 
this property since at least 1980. Approval of this request will not substantially 
diminish property values or alter the character of the neighborhood. 

 
Applicant: 
Brandon Thomas, 704 N Florida Ave, noted that Staff explained everything very well. 

 
Motion:   Mr. Hrabovsky 
Second: Mr. Bouris 
 
To approve application 22-55 as presented. 

 
Vote on Motion:  Upon roll call vote, the motion was passed, as follows.  

 
Ms. Simon   Yes 
Mr. Hrabovsky   Yes 
Mr. Bouris   Yes 
Ms. Turner   Yes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

3 

Board of Adjustment 

June 29, 2022 

4. APPLICATION #22-59 – VARIANCE TO REDUCE THE REQUIRED SIDE 
YARD SETBACK FOR A DETACHED GARAGE.      
LOCATION: 1503 E. TESSIER DRIVE        

Staff: 
Mrs. Keen gave background information, explained the Findings of Fact listed below and 
noted that based on the evidence available at the time this report was prepared, staff 
recommended approval of this request. 
 
Findings of Fact: 
1. The garage was properly permitted in 2014, however, the permit was approved in 

error and allowed the structure to be built at a 5-foot setback, at no fault of the 
applicant. The garage would have to either be rebuilt or moved to correct the 
mistake, which is economically impractical at this time. 

2. The garage received permit approval in 2014 (Permit #13-1176) and was 
constructed with a 5-foot side setback, which was what was approved on the permit.  

3. The mistake was a result in the permit being issued in error and would only have 
been avoided if at the time of permitting the incorrect side setback was identified and 
corrected. The need for the after-the-fact variance is not self-created nor resulting 
from any action by the applicant without prior knowledge or approval of the applicant. 

Applicant: 
The City of Tarpon Springs was the applicant. 
 
Public: 
Joe Hamilton, 620 N Florida Avenue, noted that he was required to move his shed. 
 
Steven Opamica, 707 Anclote Drive, noted that he thought this application was a huge 
waste of time. 
 
Brooks Fountain, 1505 E Tessier Drive, he was in favor of approval of the application. 
 
Sia Prive, 1507 E Tessier Drive, property owner noted that she was unaware that their 
garage did not meet the setback requirements and that the complaint about the garage 
was retaliation for asking the neighbor to move their fence, which was blocking her view 
of backing out of the driveway and it was a danger for pedestrians. 
 
Kristy Birge, 1502 E Tessier Drive, noted that the garage was built before the fence and 
the fence was causing issue with the sight triangle.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Continued) 



 

4 

Board of Adjustment 

June 29, 2022 

APPLICATION #22-59 (CONTINUED)         
 
Motion:   Mr. Hrabovsky 
Second: Ms. Simon 
 
To approve application 22-59 as presented. 

 
Vote on Motion:  Upon roll call vote, the motion was passed, as follows.  

 
Ms. Simon   Yes 
Mr. Hrabovsky   Yes 
Mr. Bouris   Yes 
Ms. Turner   Yes 
 

5. APPLICATION #22-64 – VARIANCE TO INCREASE THE MAXIMUM 
ALLOWABLE DRIVEWAY WIDTH.        
LOCATION: 325 W. MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. DRIVE     

Staff: 
Mrs. Keen gave background information, explained the Findings of Fact listed below and 
noted that based on the evidence available at the time this report was prepared, staff would 
recommend denial of this request. The current driveway configuration was already 6.5 feet 
wider than permitted and the proposed alteration further increases the nonconformity. 
 
Findings of Fact: 
1. The subject property meets the minimum lot area, width, and depth requirements for 

the R-70 zoning district. Further, the existing home meets and exceeds the minimum 
front setback requirement of 25 feet. There are no special circumstances unique to 
the subject property that warrants a wider driveway than permitted. 

2. The current nonconforming circular driveway is required to come into compliance 
with the current standards due to the applicant wanting to remove the existing 
concrete and replace the driveway with pavers. The existing driveway already 
exceeds the maximum total width by 6.5 feet. Approval of this variance results in a 
driveway that is 14.5 feet wider than permitted for a property with 70 feet of frontage. 

3. Literal enforcement of the maximum total driveway width for a circular driveway 
would not deny the applicant of reasonable use of the property. This property is 
already served by a nonconforming driveway and a new circular driveway could be 
designed in a manner to meet the standards of the Code. The property conforms 
with all minimum lot standards and meets the minimum front setback for the home 
which provides adequate space for a functional driveway. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Continued) 



 

5 

Board of Adjustment 

June 29, 2022 

APPLICATION #22-64 (CONTINUED)         
4. There are several other properties, including the subject site, with circular driveways 

exceeding the maximum allowable driveway widths within the immediate area. The 
proposed driveway is comparable to the average width of other circular driveways 
within the area. 

5. The increased total driveway width is not expected to substantially diminish property 
values or greatly alter the character of the neighborhood. There are several other 
properties within the immediate area with similar circular driveways to what is 
proposed by the applicant. 
 

Applicant: 
Mr. Stolon and Mr. Swailes introduced the video that was included in the agenda packet. 
 
Mr. Swailes narrated the video indicating that vehicles ran the stop sign often. 
 
Mr. Stolon indicated that Mr. Swailes needed to be able to drive around his driveway. 
 

Motion:   Mr. Hrabovsky 
Second: Ms. Simon 
 
To approve application 22-64 as presented. 
 
Mr. Hrabovsky went through the findings of fact and noted that all of them 
were met. 

 
Vote on Motion:  Upon roll call vote, the motion was passed, as follows.  

 
Ms. Simon   Yes 
Mr. Hrabovsky   Yes 
Mr. Bouris   Yes 
Ms. Turner   Yes 
 

6. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN WORKSHOP WITH BOARD      

OPENED AT 7:49 

ADJOURNED AT 8:02 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

6 

Board of Adjustment 

June 29, 2022 

7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES          
a. February 23, 2022 
b. April 27, 2022 

Motion:   Mr. Bouris 
Second: Mr. Hrabovsky 
 
To approve minutes from February 23, as presented. 

 
Vote on Motion:  Upon roll call vote, the motion was passed, as follows.  

 
Ms. Simon   Yes 
Mr. Hrabovsky   Yes 
Mr. Bouris   Yes 
Ms. Turner   Yes 
 
Motion:   Mr. Bouris 
Second: Ms. Simon 
 
To approve minutes from April 27, as presented. 

 
Vote on Motion:  Upon roll call vote, the motion was passed, as follows.  

 
Ms. Simon   Yes 
Mr. Hrabovsky   Yes 
Mr. Bouris   Yes 
Ms. Turner   Yes 
 

8. STAFF COMMENTS           
There were no Staff Comments. 
 

9. BOARD COMMENTS           
There were no Board Comments 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT           
 Ms. Turner adjourned the regular meeting at 7:37 p.m. 

 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacquie Turner, Chairperson 

 

 

*SECRETARY’S NOTE: The preceding are action minutes and are not the official meeting record. 


	22-78_Koos_BOA Packet.pdf
	Koos�#22-78
	Location & Context
	Request
	Request
	Elevation Change
	Slide Number 6




